
MINUTES 
BOARD OF HEALTH 

TOWNSHIP OF CHATHAM 
OCTOBER 9, 2018 

  
Mr. Nachtigal called the regular meeting of the Board of Health to order at 7:34 P.M. 
 
Adequate notice of this meeting of the Board of Health was given as required by the Open 
Public Meetings Act as follows: Notice was given to both the Chatham Courier and the Morris 
County Daily Record on January 10, 2018; notice was posted on the bulletin board in the main 
hallway of the Municipal Building on January 10, 2018; and notice was filed with the Township 
Clerk on January 10, 2018.  
 
Roll Call 
 
Answering present to the roll call were Mrs. Gardner, Mrs. Chang, Mrs. Plantemoli and Mr. 
Nachtigal.   Mr. Fitzpatrick and Mrs. Dolan were also present.  Mr. Selen, Mr. Samara and Ms. 
Taormina were absent.   
   
Approval of Minutes  
 
Mr. Nachtigal moved to approve the minutes of the September 11, 2018 meeting, pending the 
correction of a typographical error.  Mrs. Plantemoli seconded the motion, and it carried 
unanimously. 
 
Reports  
 
Registered Environmental Health Specialist 
 
Mr. Fitzpatrick reported that all inspections are up to date.  Additional inspections will be 
performed on  
 
Public Health Nurse  
 
Mrs. Dolan provided the nursing report.  She said that school audits will occur in November.  
Mrs. Dolan also commented on a pertussis investigation.  Notifications were sent out through the 
School District, and the two suspected cases were treated appropriately.   
 
Mr. Nachtigal asked what the guidelines are during cold & flu season for how long a child 
should wait to attend school.  Mrs. Dolan addressed the various symptom conditions.  Mrs. 
Gardner noted that a child should be fever free for at least 24 hours before returning to school.   
 
Mr. Nachtigal also asked about Points of Distribution (PODS) for mass distribution of 
medication.  Mrs. Dolan said that Morris County has designated PODS in case of emergency.  
Mr. Fitzpatrick said that the locations are dispersed throughout the County.  He also said that the 
County has updated how the distribution process works.  Mr. Fitzpatrick also commented on the 
types of facilities which are selected to be PODS.  Mr. LaConte said that several years ago public 
officials were asked to fill out forms regarding allergies to antibiotics, should there be a need to 
distribute prophylaxis medications.  He asked if such lists should be updated, and Mr. Fitzpatrick 
said that it would not be necessary.   
 
Mrs. Dolan also provided a list of current medicinal marijuana dispensaries, and said that the 
State will be issuing 6 new licenses soon.  She also reported on the process for a patient to 
receive medicinal marijuana.  Mrs. Dolan also said that there are difficulties with the dosing in 
edibles.  Mrs. Chang asked if pregnant women are being advised not to use medical marijuana in 
the same way that they would be advised not to use alcohol or tobacco.  Mr. Fitzpatrick said that 
CBDs are available at health food stores, as they are unregulated.  He also addressed the 
problems that legalized recreational marijuana has caused in Colorado.  Mrs. Plantemoli 
questioned why Governor Murphy is intent on legalizing marijuana.  Mrs. Gardner noted that 
law enforcement does not have any means available to assess the level of impairment of 
someone who has used marijuana.   
 



 2 

Mr. LaConte asked if the FDA has done any studies on medical marijuana.  Mrs. Gardner said 
that there are anecdotal studies on CBD oil, however the products available are unregulated.  
Mrs. Plantemoli asked if it is known where the supply for New Jersey is grown.     
 
Mrs. Dolan reported that the flu shot for this year is a quadrivalent shot.   
 
Registrar of Vital Statistics  
 
Mr. LaConte reported that fees were collected for the following items in September 2018:   
     

5 Marriage Licenses       $140 
4 Marriage Certificates         $30 

 2 Death Certificates                     $15 
      Total                $185 
 
Mr. LaConte noted that a payment of $250 was made to the State of New Jersey for their portion 
of the fees collected for 10 marriage licenses.   
 
Mr. Nachtigal moved to accept the reports.  Mrs. Plantemoli seconded the motion, which carried 
unanimously.   
 
Mr. LaConte noted that the Township Committee has introduced an ordinance to include vaping 
and marijuana in the prohibition of smoking on public property.   
 
Mrs. Chang reported that she submitted a proclamation for Pregnancy Loss Awareness Day, and 
the proclamation will be presented by Mayor Ritter at the Township Committee meeting on 
October 11th.   
 
Discussion 
 
Noise from Leaf Blowers  
 
Mr. Nachtigal said the topic of leaf blower noise was raised by a member of the public at the last 
meeting.  He read into the record a memo from Ms. Taormina regarding the potential for an 
ordinance prohibiting gas powered leaf blowers to be challenged in court and raising 
enforcement concerns.  Mr. Nachtigal also commented that it would be outside the purview of 
the Board of Health to direct residents and contractors to purchase lawn equipment from one 
manufacturer over another.  He also noted that the Board of Health can regulate hours of 
operation of lawn equipment under the noise ordinance.  Mr. Nachtigal suggested that neighbors 
could speak directly with neighbors if noise becomes a nuisance.  He also noted that to rely only 
on solar recharging of lawn equipment is impractical for landscapers in the northeast.   
 
Mr. LaConte said that he and Ms. Taormina do not recommend requiring contractors and 
residents to switch to battery operated equipment unless the Department of Public Works also 
makes that transition, and he does not foresee that capital expenditure being made anytime soon.  
Mr. LaConte also addressed the impracticality of enforcement of such an ordinance.   
 
Meeting Open to Public 
 
Mr. Nachtigal opened the meeting to the public.  
Seeing no public comment, the public hearing was closed.   
 
Other Business  
 
 
Mr. Nachtigal moved to adjourn at 8:28 PM.  Mrs. Plantemoli seconded the motion, and it 
carried unanimously.  
 
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Gregory J. LaConte 
       Board of Health Secretary  


	Reports
	Meeting Open to Public

